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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SANTA CLARA (UNLIMITED JURISDICTION)
	PROPEL SOFTWARE CORPORATION, a corporation, and DAVID PHELAN, an individual, each individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated,



                 Plaintiffs,

vs.

Y2 MARKETING, an entity of unknown organization, and DOES 1 to 500,



                Defendants.
	  Case No.: CV 807451 


CLASS ACTION 

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

1. Violation of Telephone Consumer Protection Act

2. Conversion

3. Trespass

4. Unfair Business Practices

5. Unfair Advertising Practices

6. Negligence



AS A MATTER OF RIGHT, REPRESENTATIVE PLAINTIFFS PROPEL SOFTWARE CORPORATION and DAVID PHELAN (“Plaintiffs”) file this First Amended Complaint and allege as follows on their own behalf and on behalf of all others similarly situated: 

FACTS COMMON TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION

1. At all times material to this complaint, Representative Plaintiff PROPEL SOFTWARE CORPORATION was a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of California, with a principal place of business in Santa Clara County, California.

2. At all times material to this complaint, Representative Plaintiff DAVID PHELAN was an individual residing in Towson, Maryland.

3. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon allege that the Defendant Y2 MARKETING is, and at all times herein mentioned was, a business entity of form unknown doing business in the State of California with a principal place of business in Desoto, Texas.

4. The true names or capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate, or otherwise, of Defendants DOES 1 to 500, inclusive, being unknown, Plaintiffs sue these Defendants under fictitious names pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure § 474. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that each Defendant named in this complaint is in some manner responsible for the wrongs and damages as alleged below, and in so acting was functioning, at least at times, as the agent, servant, partner, and/or employee of the Defendants, and in doing and/or not doing the actions mentioned below was acting within the course and scope of his or her authority as such agent, servant, partner, and/or employee with the permission and consent of the other Defendants. Further, all acts herein alleged were approved of and ratified by each and every other Defendant.

5. Plaintiffs complain on behalf of themselves and all other persons in the United States who received unsolicited facsimile transmissions from Defendants between March 31, 2000 and March 31, 2002, but have not yet entered into settlement agreements with Defendants. Such members of the class are readily ascertainable but are so numerous as to make joinder impracticable. There is a well-defined community of interest in the questions of law and fact involved affecting the party to be represented. The claims of the representative parties are typical of the claims of the class. The representative parties will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class. Absent a class action, Defendants will continue and perpetuate these wrongs and will retain some of the benefits of their wrongs. There is no plain, speedy, or adequate remedy other than by maintenance of this class action since Plaintiffs are informed and believe that the damages to each plaintiff is relatively small, making it economically unfeasible to pursue remedies other than through a class action. Consequently, there would be a failure of justice but for the maintenance of the present class action.

6. Beginning on or about January 6, 2002, Plaintiff PROPEL SOFTWARE CORPORATION received by facsimile transmission one or more documents advertising a marketing seminar from Defendant Y2 MARKETING. 

7. Beginning on or about February 2, 2002, Plaintiff DAVID PHELAN received by facsimile transmission one or more documents advertising a marketing seminar from Defendant Y2 MARKETING.

8. Plaintiffs did not consent to receipt of advertisements from Defendants by facsimile transmission.

9. Plaintiffs had no prior relationship with the Defendants sufficient to authorize the sending of unsolicited faxes.

10. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon alleges that Defendants will continue to advertise in this wrongful and unlawful fashion unless otherwise enjoined by this Court.

11. Plaintiffs are informed and believe and thereon alleges that Defendant Y2 MARKETING is aware that sending unsolicited advertising by automatic telephone dialing machines is unlawful.  

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
[Violation of Telephone Consumer Protection Act]

(Against All Defendants)

12. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 to 11, inclusive, as if the same were fully set forth herein.

13. Congress enacted the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. § 227, for the purpose of protecting businesses and consumers from unsolicited advertising by automated telephone dialing machines. 

14. Defendants violated 47 U.S.C. § 227 by using automated telephone dialers to send commercial advertising to Plaintiffs. 

15. Defendants' violation of 47 U.S.C. § 227 was knowing, intentional and willful.

16. 47 U.S.C. § 227 provides for a private right of action against violators.

17. Defendants' intentional conduct warrants trebling of Plaintiffs' damages.

18. Plaintiffs suffered damages in the amount of $500 per fax, to be trebled as authorized by law.

19. Punitive damages are appropriate to deter Defendant's conduct and to deter others from engaging in such conduct, in that the Defendants conduct was malicious, fraudulent and oppressive.


WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants, and each of them, as hereinafter set forth.
SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
[Conversion] 

(Against All Defendants)

20. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 to 11, inclusive, as if the same were fully set forth herein.

21. Plaintiffs owned blank pieces of paper suitable for multiple purposes.

22. Plaintiffs' fax machines contained ink suitable for use in printing on paper.

23. Defendants, and each of them, interfered with Plaintiffs' ownership rights in the facsimile machine and in the paper and ink by causing Plaintiffs' facsimile telephone machines to print Defendants' commercial advertisements on Plaintiffs' paper using Plaintiffs' ink, and caused Plaintiffs to spend time processing received transmissions.

24. Defendants' interference was intentional.

25. Defendants' interference was substantial in that it rendered pieces of paper useless for any other purpose.

26. Defendants' interference, and the subsequent damage to Plaintiffs, was the precise action which Congress set forth to eliminate by enacting 47 U.S.C. § 227 and which California prohibits in California Business & Professions Code § 17538.4.

27. Plaintiffs suffered damages in an amount according to proof.

28. Punitive damages are appropriate to deter Defendant's conduct and to deter others from engaging in such conduct, in that the Defendants conduct was malicious, fraudulent and oppressive.


WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants, and each of them, as hereinafter set forth.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
[Trespass] 

(Against All Defendants)

29. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 to 11, inclusive, as if the same were fully set forth herein.

30. Plaintiffs own or owned facsimile telephone machines capable of receiving facsimile transmissions.

31. Defendants, and each of them, without Plaintiffs' consent, took possession of Plaintiffs' facsimile telephone machines by dialing Plaintiffs' designated telephone numbers for receipt of facsimile transmissions.

32. Defendants' possession and control of Plaintiffs' facsimile telephone machines continued for the duration of time required to receive and print Defendants' commercial advertisement.

33. During the period of time Defendants' controlled Plaintiffs' facsimile machines, Plaintiffs were unable to receive facsimile transmissions from third parties.

34. Defendants' intermeddling without Plaintiffs' consent to Plaintiffs' possession and control of their facsimile telephone machines was precisely the type of activity which Congress sought to eliminate by enacting 47 U.S.C. § 227 and which California regulates in California Business & Professions Code § 17538.4.

35. Defendants' wrongful conduct, unless and until enjoined by Order of this Court, will cause and great and irreparable injury to Plaintiffs by preventing Plaintiffs' use and enjoyment of personal property.

36. Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law for the injuries being suffered in that Plaintiffs will be forced to institute a multiplicity of lawsuits to obtain adequate compensation for continuing tortious facsimile transmissions.

37. Plaintiffs suffered damages in an amount according to proof.

38. Punitive damages are appropriate to deter Defendant's conduct and to deter others from engaging in such conduct, in that the Defendants conduct was malicious, fraudulent and oppressive.


WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants, and each of them, as hereinafter set forth.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
[Unfair Business Practices] 

(Against All Defendants)

39. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 to 11, inclusive, as if the same were fully set forth herein.

40. Defendants and each of them caused the facsimile transmission of a commercial advertisement in a manner designed to deceive Plaintiffs and mislead Plaintiffs as to the actual origin of the facsimile transmissions.

41. Defendants' transmission of facsimile advertisements was unlawful for violation of 47 U.S.C. § 227 and California Business & Professions Code § 17538.4.

42. Defendants' facsimile transmission were misleading advertising and members of the public were likely to be deceived.

43. Plaintiffs suffered damages in an amount according to proof, in that the Defendants conduct was malicious, fraudulent and oppressive.


WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants, and each of them, as hereinafter set forth.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
[Unfair Advertising Practices] 

(Against All Defendants)

44. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 to 11, inclusive, as if the same were fully set forth herein.

45. Defendants and each of them caused the facsimile transmission of a commercial advertisement in a manner designed to deceive Plaintiffs and mislead Plaintiffs as to the actual origin of the facsimile transmissions.

46. Defendants' transmission of facsimile advertisements was unlawful for violation of 47 U.S.C. § 227 and California Business & Professions Code § 17538.4.

47. Defendants' facsimile transmissions were misleading advertising and members of the public were likely to be deceived.

48. Plaintiffs suffered damages in an amount according to proof, in that the Defendants conduct was malicious, fraudulent and oppressive.


WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants, and each of them, as hereinafter set forth.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
[Negligence] 

(Against All Defendants)

49. Plaintiffs hereby incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 to 11, inclusive, as if the same were fully set forth herein.

50. Defendants, and each of them, owed to Plaintiffs a duty to avoid using Plaintiffs' paper and ink unnecessarily.

51. Defendants, and each of them, owed to Plaintiffs a duty under California Civil Code §§ 1708 and 1714(a) to avoid harm to Plaintiffs and their personal property. 

52. Defendants, and each of them, breached their duties to Plaintiffs by failing to verify that faxes were sent to only those who specifically requested them, and by sending unwanted fax advertising which caused Plaintiffs' fax machines to print on Plaintiffs' paper using Plaintiffs' ink. 

53. Plaintiffs suffered detriment in the form of wasted paper, ink and time.

54. Plaintiffs' detriment was a proximate result of Defendants' breach of duty.

55. Plaintiffs suffered damages in an amount according to proof.


WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants, and each of them, as hereinafter set forth.

//

PRAYER FOR RELIEF


WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants, and each of them, as follows:

1. For statutory damages in an amount to be determined according to proof at trial;

2. For general damages in an amount to be determined according to proof at trial;

2.
For special damages in an amount to be determined according to proof at trial;

3. For punitive damages in an amount to be determined according to proof at trial;


3.
For attorneys' fees;


4.
For the costs of suit herein incurred;


5.
For an Order of this Court enjoining Defendants, and each of them, and their agents, servants and employees, and all persons acting under, in concert with, or for them, from transmitting to the class by facsimile telephone machine any commercial advertisement; and


6.
For such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

Dated:____________________


PIERCE & SHEARER LLP


By_________________________

Timothy Walton








      Attorney for Plaintiffs








6
-8-

_____________________________________________________________________________

                     COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

